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RESTORING 40 ACRES AT HOBART NATURE 
DISTRICT – DESIGN-ENGINEERING 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS Q&A 
 
Q: The RFP it states that he proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope with all original 
pages intact. One (1) original proposal, two (2) hard copies, and one (1) digital copy must be 
submitted. Are you requiring wet signatures on the original or can they be digital signatures? 
A: Either wet or digital is sufficient for our needs. 
 
Q: Do Design Contractors have to provide an actual site design with the bid? In other words, do 
we submit plan sheets with our proposed trails, wetlands, habitats, etc.? Or will that be 
performed after the award of the contract? 
A: Site design and plan sheets will be developed after the award of the contract. 
 
Q: Will a topographic survey be required for this project? Would that be part of the $90,000 or 
would that be separate? 
A: Yes, while a land survey has already been conducted and there is not a lot of grade change 
on the site, a topographic survey should be conducted for accessibility purposes (ADA 
compliance of all walkways). The topographic survey should be part of the $90,000 budget.  
 
Q: Is a wetland delineation going to be required? 
A: No.  
 
Q: Will a tree survey be required or recommended? 
A: Yes, a tree survey will be required, expounding on the land survey and stewardship plan that 
IN DNR completed as part of project preparation (authored by Potthoff, dated 1/29/2020), found 
in Appendix D of the RFP.  
 
Q: Will the chosen design Contractor be precluded from bidding on the implementation phase? 
A: No, we will be doing a separate RFP for the implementation portion of the project at the end 
of 2025.  
 
Q: Will the stakeholder meetings coordinated by Delta and Lake County Parks be virtual or in 
person? 
A: The Community Stakeholder Working Group meetings will largely be in person in Hobart (a 
minimum of five meetings by September 30, 2027). There will also be larger public meetings 
that take place in-person, as well as stakeholder engagements that take place virtually, such as 
small group discussions and individual interviews.  
 
Q: Will MBE/WBEs (Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises) be rewarded with 
additional points?   
A: MBE/WBE’s are encouraged to apply, but they are not scored differently than others.  
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Q: Can you clarify if the implementation QAPP is for construction or data acquisition on site? 
A: We’re asking for two QAPPs, one focused on project implementation, and one outlining 
monitoring protocols to track the project’s overall effectiveness after implementation work is 
complete. The implementation QAPP is for construction.  
 
Q: Does the parking lot have to be a specific size? How many parking spaces are you looking 
for?  
A: We anticipate around 10 or 12 max parking spaces. 
 
Q: Do you have a budget for implementation work at this point? 
A: We have a rough estimate for implementation, based on our grant award from NWFW. 
However, we are currently looking for match funding for the recreational aspects of the project 
implementation. Given the evolving nature of funding for the construction/implementation, it 
would be beneficial for the project design to incorporate options with flexibility and phasing. This 
approach will allow us to adapt to budget constraints and timeline adjustments more effectively. 
The Design Contractor is required to deliver preliminary implementation cost estimates with 
30% of the design completion, and a final implementation cost estimate with 100% of the design 
completion.  
 
Q: Being that the site is in close proximity to Robinson Lake and that the new trail 
implementation will connect to the lake trails and park area, are there any maintenance or other 
considerations that should be made on the southern edge of the site? 
A: Lake County Parks and the Design Contractor will have to work with the City of Hobart on 
exactly how maintenance will take place. Robinson Lake Park is a public park owned by the city, 
and they are the ones in charge of the maintenance of Robinson Lake Park grounds. Lake 
County Parks will be in charge of maintenance of the 40-acre site. There will be additional 
coordination with Shirley Heinze Land Trust and IN DNR, who maintain the land north of the 40-
acre site. These entities will be part of the Community Stakeholder Working Group.  
 
Q: Can we get a copy of the conservation easement document? 
A: Yes, the conservation easement document is attached to this document. 
 
Q: Do you anticipate needing soil borings? 
A: No.  
 
Q: Will there be a pavilion on the site? 
A: Not necessarily, but we are open to suggestions, perhaps near the overlook area or near the 
parking lot. We encourage Design Contractors to be creative with any recreational elements 
such as loop trails and educational signage, that enhance the site's functionality, accessibility, 
and community value. All suggestions should support ecological goals and recreational use. 
Q: How many stakeholder meetings do you anticipate? 
A: There will be a minimum of five in-person Community Stakeholder Working Group meetings 
over the course by September 30, 2027. We anticipate having at least two more in-person 
opportunities to meet with the Working Group by December 31, 2025, but it’s up to the project 
team to determine if more are needed. Other opportunities for public meetings and individual or 
group interviews will be coordinated as well.  
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Q: Would the expectation on the stakeholder meetings be that the consultant is facilitating or 
providing technical support? 
A: The Design Contractor will only need to provide technical support.  
 
Q: Related to the project plans, is there a nearby nature center to this site that might have a lot 
of foot traffic? Or is it people coming and parking?  
A: There is no nature center building near the site. There is a parking lot for Robinson Lake 
Park to the south of the site, and some Shirley Heinze Land Trust and IN DNR lots to the north. 
The parking lot that will be implemented in this project will be north of the site off of 49th Ave.   
 
Q: For section 2.1, how many versions of the drawings are you looking for? Just one set and 
then you’ll interact with the public and revise that for redesign? Or would you like different 
designs for community members to choose from? 
A: We are asking that three rounds of feedback be integrated before 100% of the design and 
site work drawings are completed by December 31, 2025. We think it would be great to have 
several versions of designs to present to community members, but it will be up to the Design 
Contractor to decide on how to approach design versions.  
 
Q: What do you think is an adequate site analysis for the design that’s proposed (as opposed to 
having a minimum number of tasks to be completed)? 
A: We want a full design that is acceptable for Lake County Parks and the community, and the 
design should be based on the Baseline Site Analysis and community input. The Baseline Site 
Analysis will build off of the land survey and stewardship plan that IN DNR completed as part of 
project preparation (authored by Potthoff, dated 1/29/2020), found in Appendix D of the RFP. 
Most of the site will be off the beaten path (more of a nature-preserve). We also anticipate 
having robust community input since it’s the site of the former Serbian Orthodox Church 
banquet hall that hosted many meaningful community events, and many community members 
have fond members of the site. 
 
Q: Is the church that used to be on the site still active? Do they still exist? 
A: The St. Sava Serbian Orthodox Church is not on the site anymore. They have relocated to 
Merrillville, IN and there are many community members still active. The church community will 
be represented in the Community Stakeholder Working Group.   
 
Q: Would part of the community engagement be focused on preserving history from the church 
banquet hall specifically? Would site design require any signage of the church’s history? 
A: There may be elements of the design that acknowledge the church’s history, events they 
hosted in the community, etc. If there are elements of historical preservation or signage, it will 
be determined through community engagement. 
 
Q: Do you anticipate the Deign Contractor having to do any work with the state SHPO (State 
Historic Preservation Office)? 
A: When Lake County Parks Board acquired the property in 2021, they did a SHPO survey and 
there was nothing in the area to be concerned about. If we come across any findings during the 
implementation phase, we will do our best to document it. We have also submitted 
environmental compliance documents with National Fish and Wildlife Service, and the history of 
the land was submitted through that process, where nothing of note has been flagged.  
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Q: Is it accurate that this proposal is solely focused on contractors’ project management 
approach and qualifications, as opposed to presenting an alternative restoration plan at this 
time? (For this submittal, we are not submitting our vision for the site). 
A: Yes, that is correct. The project has been funded based on our initial plans to focus on 
stormwater management, habitat preservation and expansion, and recreational connectivity. We 
have specific metrics tied to these goals that we would like to accomplish. These include:  

• Capture over 4.6 million stormwater gallons annually; 
• Restore 5 acres of permanent wetland;  
• Restore 30 acres of mesic oak savanna, including about 6 acres of ephemeral wetlands 

and 3 acres of wet prairie;  
• Remove invasive species;  
• Remove 3 acres of impervious surface and illegal dumping pollution; and 
• Add public access to recreation and greenspace (2 acres for a trail, boardwalk, overlook, 

small parking lot, and wayfinding). 
 
Q: Regarding criteria for selection, what portion of the 40 points allocated towards budget is 
awarded for meeting the $90,000 budget versus coming in at a number that’s lower?  
A: We don’t have a specific breakdown for the 40 points. It will depend on how comprehensive 
and aligned the submittal is compared to the price point. Lower priced bids may be scored 
higher.  
 
Q: Are any of the wetlands Army Corps jurisdictional? Do you have a JD? 
A: No, they are not jurisdictional; they are all isolated. We do not have a JD. 
 
Q: Has IDEM (Indiana Department of Environmental Management) looked at these and would 
they be exempt? Will there be any access issues for avoiding certain areas when we need to 
get in the site for invasives removal? 
A: IDEM has not looked into the project, but we don’t anticipate having any issues with normal 
permitting processes for the work. There are some phragmites that have moved in on the south 
end of the parking lot where the building structure used to be, and parts of the site are quite 
degraded. We will be creating wetlands more in the long run. There is great access into the site 
from both the north and south ends. 
 
Q: Do the trails, boardwalks, and parking lot need to be ADA compliant? 
A: Yes. 
 
Q: Where did the estimate to capture 4.6 millions gallons of stormwater come from? 
A: During the proposal stage of the project, the project team used the STEPL model with the 
following assumptions: 

• The site spans 40 acres.  
• Precipitation data was sourced from the Lowell Weather Station in Lake County, Indiana.  
• A hydrologic soil group of B was selected, indicating that the soil has moderate 

infiltration rates when thoroughly wet, consisting chiefly of moderately deep or deep, 
moderately well or well drained soils with moderately fine to moderately coarse textures. 
These soils have a moderate rate of water transmission. 

• Currently, the land usage comprises 9.5 acres of developed vacant land, characterized 
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by impervious and compact soil (encompassing a deteriorating parking lot, entrance 
drive, fallow lawn/picnic area, previously mowed areas, and the former banquet center 
location. Among these, 3 acres are entirely impervious), alongside 30.5 acres of open 
land.  

• Post-project completion, the land usage will consist of 30.5 acres of open land, and 85% 
of the former 9.5 acres of developed vacant land transformed into wetlands (with a 5 
acres permanent wetland). 

• As a result, the project achieves the following: annually capturing 4,601,015 gallons of 
stormwater, preventing 4.93 pounds of phosphorus, 1072.99 pounds of sediment, and 
25.14 pounds of nitrogen from entering the system. 

 
Q: Regarding the dumping that has occurred illegally, do we know what the material that was 
dumped is? Or is it just household waste?  
A: Littered items have included old couches, carpets, and furniture, tree branches and other 
pruning debris from yards, a few car tires, and so forth. There have been no hazardous 
materials.   
 
 
 






























